
 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
 
Venue: Town Hall,  

Moorgate Street, 
Rotherham.  S60  2TH 

Date: Monday, 17th March, 2014 

  Time: 10.00 a.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
1. To determine if the matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested in accordance with Part 1 (as amended March 2006) of Schedule 
12A to the Local Government Act 1972.  

  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered later in the agenda as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Apologies for Absence.  
  

 
4. Declarations of Interest.  
  

 
5. Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 8) 
  

 
6. Rotherham Learning Disability Partnership Board (Pages 9 - 15) 
  

 
7. Community and Home Care Activity and Quality Quarter 3 2013 (Pages 16 - 

21) 
  

 
8. Residential and Nursing Care Quality and Activity (Pages 22 - 29) 
  

 
9. Adult Services Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Pages 30 - 35) 
  

 

 



37H ADULT SOCIAL CARE - 17/02/14 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
17th February, 2014 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Doyle (in the Chair); Councillors Gosling and P. A. Russell. 

 
H70. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 There were no Declarations of Interest made at the meeting. 

 
H71. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
 Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting held on 20th 

January, 2014. 
 
Resolved:-  That the minutes of the meeting held on 20th January, 2014, 
be approved as a correct record. 
 

H72. HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD  
 

 The minutes of the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 
22nd January, 2014, were noted. 
 

H73. ADULT SERVICES REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING  
 

 Consideration was given to a report presented by Mark Scarrott, Finance 
Manager (Neighbourhoods and Adult Services), which provided a 
financial forecast for the Adult Services Department within the 
Neighbourhoods and Adult Services Directorate to the end of March, 
2014, based on actual income and expenditure to the end of December, 
2013.   
 
It was reported that the forecast for the financial year 2013/14 was an 
overspend of £1.083M against an approved net revenue budget of 
£72.809M. However, compensatory forecast underspends within the 
remaining NAS Directorate was reducing the overall forecast overspend to 
£379,000.  The main budget pressures related to the delayed 
implementation of a number of budget savings targets including 
Continuing Health Care funding and implementing the review of In-house 
Residential Care.    
 
Management actions continued to be developed by budget managers to 
bring the forecast overspend in line with the approved cash limited 
budget. 
 
The latest year end forecast showed a number of underlying budget 
pressures which were being offset by a number of forecast underspends:- 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5Page 1



ADULT SOCIAL CARE - 17/02/14 38H 

 

Adults General  

• A slight underspend based on estimated charges including savings on 
training budgets 

 
Older People 

• A forecast overspend on In-House Residential Care due to delays on 
implementation of budget savings target and recurrent budget 
pressure on Residential Care income 

• Recurrent budget pressures in Direct Payments, however, client 
numbers had reduced since April together with a reduction in the 
average cost of packages 

• Underspend on In House Transport 

• Forecast underspend on Enabling Care and Sitting Service, 
Community Mental Health, Carers’ Services, and planned delays on 
the recruitment to vacant posts within Assessment and Care 
Management and Community Support plus additional income from 
Health 

• Overspend on independent sector Home Care due to an increase in 
demand since April 

• Overspend on independent residential and nursing care due to an 
additional 73 clients receiving a service than forecast. Additional 
income from property charges was reducing the overall overspend 

• Forecast savings on in-house day care due to vacant posts and 
moratorium on non-pay budgets 

• Overall underspend on Rothercare due to slippage in Service Review 
including options for replacement of alarms 

• Minor underspend in other non-pay budgets due to moratorium on 
non-essential spend 

 
Learning Disabilities 

• Slight underspend on independent sector Residential Care budgets 
due to a reduction in placements.  Work was ongoing with regard to 
Continuing Health Care applications and an internal review of all high 
cost placements 

• Forecast overspend on Day Care due to a delay on the 
implementation of Day Care Review including increase in fees and 
charges plus recurrent budget pressure on transport 

• Forecast overspend in independent sector Home Care due to increase 
in demand for Service 

• High cost placements in independent Day Care resulting in a forecast 
overspend.  Pressured reduced due to additional Continuing Health 
Care funding and 1 client moving out of the area 

• High cost Community Support placements resulting in forecast 
overspend  

• Delay in developing Supported Living Schemes plus additional funding 
from Health resulting in a forecast underspend 

• Efficiency savings on Service Level Agreements for Advice and 
Information and Client Support Services 

• Lower than expected increase in demand for Direct Payments 

Page 2



39H ADULT SOCIAL CARE - 17/02/14 

 

• Additional staffing costs and essential repairs within In-House 
Residential Care offset by planned delays in recruiting to vacant posts 
within Assessment and Care Management  
 

Mental Health 

• Projected overspend on Residential Care budget due to a slippage on 
budget savings target plan to move clients into Community Support 
Services offset by an underspend in Community Support budget 

• Budget pressure on Direct Payments but additional income recovery 
was reducing the overall pressure on budget 

• Overspends on employees’ budgets due to lower than staff turnover, 
additional overtime and agency cover 

 
Physical and Sensory Disabilities 

• Continued pressure on Independent Sector Domiciliary Care due to an 
increase in demand 

• Further increase in demand for Direct Payments 

• Underspend on Community Support as clients moved to Direct 
Payments 

• Forecast underspend on Residential and Nursing Care due to planned 
slippage in developing alternatives to respite provision 

• Reduction in contract with independent sector Day Care provider 

• Underspend on equipment and minor adaptations budgets 

• Forecast efficiency savings on contracts with Voluntary Sector 
providers and higher than forecast staff turnover 

 
Safeguarding 

• Overspend due to lower than expected staff turnover and use of 
agency support 
 

Supporting People 

• Efficiency savings on subsidy contracts had already been identified 
against budget  

 
Total expenditure on Agency staff for Adult Services to the end of 
December, 2013, was £263,206 (no off contract) compared with actual 
expenditure of £251,010 (no off contract) for the same period last year.  
The main areas of spend were within Assessment and Care Management 
Teams, Residential Care and Safeguarding to cover front line vacancies 
and sickness.  There had been no expenditure on consultancy to date. 
 
There had been £300,655 spent up to the end of December, 2013, on 
non-contractual overtime for Adult Services compared with expenditure of 
£290,284 for the same period last year. 
 
Careful scrutiny of expenditure and income and close budget monitoring 
remained essential to ensure equity of Service provision for adults across 
the Borough within existing budgets particularly where the demand and 
spend was difficult to predict in a volatile social care market.  A potential 

Page 3



ADULT SOCIAL CARE - 17/02/14 40H 

 

risk was the future number and cost of transitional placements from 
Children’s Services into Learning Disability Services together with any 
future reductions in Continuing Health Care funding. 
 
Regional benchmarking within the Yorkshire and Humberside region for 
the final quarter of 2012/13, showed that Rotherham remained below 
average on spend per head in respect of Continuing Health Care. 
 
It was noted that the Winter Pressure funding would be factored into next 
month’s report. 

 
Resolved:-  That the latest financial projection against budget for 2013/14 
be noted. 
 

H74. DEBT MANAGEMENT AND RECOVERY POLICY FOR ADULT SOCIAL 
CARE DEBT  
 

 The Director of Health and Wellbeing and the Operational Manager, 
Revenue and Payments, presented the Debt Management and Recovery 
Policy for Adult Social Care Debt, a high level Policy for how debt would 
be pursued.  It ensured that staff and customers were clear as to how the 
Authority took a fair and firm approach to the recovery of money owed to 
the Council for the provision of Adult Social Care Services. 
 
At present the Council did not have any overarching policy framework for 
the management of Adult Social Care debt.  The Policy set out to 
formalise best practice and included guidance to ensure that there was a 
transparent, consistent and proportionate approach to the recovery of 
money owed to the Council having due regard to minimising arrears whilst 
not causing undue hardship or consequences to the customer as a result. 
 
Discussion ensued on the Policy with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 

− It may result in an increase in concerns from families where no 
payment had been made but hopefully it would see an increase  in 
debt recovery 

− When signing the Social  Care Assessment, a Service user was 
acknowledging that they knew there would be a charge.   

− When visited by the Financial Assessment Officer, those receiving 
non-residential care would be asked to sign a declaration with regard 
to charges 

− Any debt owed by a deceased Service user was passed onto their 
estate and handled very sensitively 

− If it was felt that a carer was misusing a Service user’s funds, a 
referral would be made to Safeguarding.  There were various options 
open to the Authority if a carer did not feel that any charges should be 
paid 

− Before any formal legal action, a referral would be made to the 
Director for Health and Wellbeing 

− Every case was considered on its own merits 

Page 4



41H ADULT SOCIAL CARE - 17/02/14 

 

 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the Debt Management and Recovery Policy for Adult 
Social Care Debt be referred to Cabinet for adoption by Council. 
 
(2)  That the forms used be reviewed to ensure clarity of the charges 
applicable once consent had been given. 
 

H75. WINTERBOURNE VIEW JOINT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME  
 

 Shona McFarlane, Director of Health and Wellbeing, presented the 
response received in respect of the Authority’s stocktake return submitted 
in accordance with the Winterbourne View Joint Improvement 
Programme. 
 
The response included an outline of key strengths and potential areas for 
development.  It illustrated that the Authority was compliant in all aspects 
of the stocktake. 
 
Resolved:-  That the report be noted. 
 

H76. TRAINING ADULT SOCIAL CARE WORKFORCE  
 

 The Director of Health and Wellbeing submitted a request for exemption 
from Standing Order No. 48 (contracts valued at £50,00 or more) in order 
that 3 existing training providers may continue to be contracted to repeat 
their specialist “branded” training courses in support of a capable and 
skilled Adult Social Care workforce across Rotherham. 
 
The Neighbourhoods and Adult Services Directorate planned and 
organised a broad range of training and development activities for the 
entire Adult Social Care workforce across Rotherham.  The majority of 
future training needs identified for the workforce would now be met 
through the Council’s new Dynamic Purchasing System for Learning and 
Development that had been let by the Corporate Procurement Team.  
However, a very small number of existing specialist sole training provider 
courses planned to continue and it  was proposed that the following 4 
courses be provided by the 3 existing providers, (Alzheimer’s Society, 
Later Life Training, and Bradford University):- 
 
Care Information and Support Programme 
OTAGO Exercise Programme Leader 
Cornerstones of Person-Centred Dementia Care 
Dementia Care Mapping 
 
It was noted that, although the total amount of the contracts would amount 
to more than £50,000 the individual contract value was below that level.  
Clarification would be sought from the Procurement Team. 
 
 
 

Page 5



ADULT SOCIAL CARE - 17/02/14 42H 

 

Resolved:- That the contracting of training courses for Dementia Care 
Mapping, Cornerstones of Dementia Care, Carer Information and Support 
Programme and the OTAGO Exercise Programme be exempt from 
Standing Order No. 48 (contracts valued at £50,000 or more) subject to 
confirmation from the Procurement Team. 
 

H77. DOMESTIC ABUSE SCRUTINY REVIEW  
 

 The Director of Health and Wellbeing submitted, for information, the 
response from the Safer Rotherham Partnership Domestic Abuse Priority 
Group to the Improving Lives Select Commission regarding the Scrutiny 
Review of Domestic Abuse Services. 
 
The Select Commission had undertaken the review to establish how 
different agencies worked together in Rotherham to support people who 
had experienced domestic abuse.  It wished to address any Service gaps 
and areas of duplication to identify opportunities for working more 
effectively and efficiently and to ensure agencies could respond to future 
challenges. 
 
Of the Review’s 20 recommendations,  
2 deferred     
17 accepted     
1 agreed subject to funding available  
 
It was noted that Domestic Abuse now came under the portfolio of the 
Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the report be noted. 
 
(2)  That the minutes of the Domestic Abuse Priority Group be submitted 
to the Cabinet Member. 
 

H78. UPDATE RESPONSE TO SCRUTINY REVIEW RE CONTINUING 
HEALTHCARE  
 

 The Director of Health and Wellbeing reported on the progress made on 
the recommendations from the joint Health and Improving Lives Select 
Commissions’ review into Continuing Health Care. 
 
A senior management group consisting of both RMBC and NHSR staff 
had agreed a set of actions to ensure effective multi-disciplinary working 
and delivery of better outcomes for customers:- 
 

− CHC and Social Care Assessments - An improved working 
relationship now existed and an understanding of each professional’s 
role in participating in a multi-disciplinary assessment and completing 
the Decision Support Tool.  However, it had yet to be seen whether 
this would impact upon the financial position as positively as was 
required. 

Page 6



43H ADULT SOCIAL CARE - 17/02/14 

 

 

− Assessment, Decision Making and Access to CHC for Children with 
Complex Needs - For children and young people with significant 
needs, there were 2 main areas which needed to be improved.  
Firstly, reviews of current cases and consideration of a number of new 
cases which had yet to be assessed and considered by the Panel and 
secondly, an improved system of decision making through a revised 
Continuing Care Panel which complied with national guidance on 
Children’s Continuing Healthcare and ‘Who Pays’.  There had been a 
commitment to address the backlog by the end of March, 2014, 
however, it had since become apparent that the CCG and CSU were 
unable to meet the deadline.  It had since been agreed that the CCG 
would backdate their financial commitment for cases in 2013/14 to the 
date from which the package of care started for children and young 
people agreed as eligible for CHC funding and they were seeking 
clinical assessment support to carry out the work.  CCG and Council 
staff were meeting fortnightly to progress the agreed programme of 
work. 

 

− Joint Protocol – Had been drafted and work had commenced with 
Continuing Health Care manager/staff and RMBC CHC Champions – 
CHC Lead now in post. Specific training for those working in 
Children’s Services would be based on regional advice following the 
National Guidance on CHC and take account of the new Panel 
arrangements.  The Protocol would include how to resolve disputes 
and written guidance for staff produced to ensure consistency and 
compliance once issued. 
 

− Training –  To be delivered jointly by CHC/RMBC leads and rolled out 
across hospital, Community Health and Social Care Teams.  Progress 
on delivery had been delayed as CCG required to provide information 
regarding the start date. 

 
The RMBC/CHC Senior Management Group, Personalisation Stream, 
would continue to meet and consider budget issues/develop cost effective 
delivery of personal health budgets by 1st April, 2014, based on a pilot 
project implemented from 1st April, 2013. 
 
The latest Yorkshire and Humberside CHC benchmarking information for 
the final quarter ending 31st March, 2013, revealed that Rotherham was 
marked 7 out of 15 in terms of the number of people receiving CHC 
funding.  In terms of actual expenditure Rotherham was ranked 10th and, 
therefore, still below the average spend per person within the region. 

 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the update on progress and issues arising from the 
Scrutiny Review of Continuing Healthcare be noted. 
 
(2)  That a further update be submitted in due course. 
 
 

Page 7



ADULT SOCIAL CARE - 17/02/14 44H 

 

H79. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 Resolved: -  That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to 
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended 2006 – information relates 
to finance and business affairs). 
 

H80. ROTHERCARE DISPERSED ALARMS - TENDER  
 

 The Procurement – Category Manager reported receipt of a tender 
received for the supply of Dispersed alarms for the Rothercare Service. 
 
Due to the fast moving pace of the technological world, it had been felt 
that a 2 year deal would give the best combination of value, future options 
and flexibility to the Authority.  It would be renewed annually subject to 
satisfactory performance. 
 
As part of the procurement category management process, a thorough 
investigation of the telecare market place and had been subject to 
competition through the Northern Housing Consortiums Assisted Living 
Framework. 
 
5 key providers had been invited to bid with 2 tender submissions 
received.  The tenders had been evaluated and subjected to equipment 
trials by colleagues within Rothercare and users of the Service. 
 
Discussion ensued with the following issues raised:- 
 

− Charges to the Service users 

− Development of the Rothercare system 

− Assistive technology 
 

Resolved:-  that the tender submitted by Tunstall Healthcare Ltd., for the 
supply of Dispersed Alarm units, be approved. 
 

 

Page 8



Partnership Board – Friday 17th January 2014 

Rotherham Learning Disability Partnership Board 

Notes of the Meeting 
Friday 17th January 2014 

10.10 to 11.10 am 

Voting Members 
At the meeting:
Patricia Russell Councillor – RMBC  - Co-Chair
Alison Owen Regional Forum Representative  - Co-Chair

Bryan Adams People’s Representative (left at 11.00 am)
Jan Frost Housing Services - RMBC 
Shona McFarlane Director of Health and Well Being – RMBC (left at 10.55 am) 
Ann McMahon Carer Representative 
Jayne Price Carer Representative

Who said they could not come to the meeting: 
Linda Jarrold Voluntary Action Rotherham 
Robert Parkin People’s Representative
Kate Tufnell Head of Contracts & Service Improvement - NHS-CCG 
John Williams Learning Disability Service 

Who did not come to the meeting: 
Brian Wood Children & Young People’s Service - RMBC 

Non-Voting Members 
At the meeting: 
David Waldie For Kate Tufnell 

Also:
James Speakup Student

Taking the notes of the meeting:
Jo Frear Learning Disability Service 

Key:
NHS-CCG NHS Clinical Commissioning Group 
RMBC Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council 
RAP Rotherham Advocacy Partnerships 
RDaSH Rotherham Doncaster and South Humber NHS Foundation Trust 

Sorry!

Agenda Item 6Page 9



Sor

Hello

Alis
Pa

1 Int
The
wh

Jo
me

2 Let
Sh
hos
abu
ass
hav
ser

The
the
Bo
how

Joh
sup
pla
pla
Tre
and

Ro
talk
Bo
oka

Eve
sur
Th
saf
mo

rry

Partner

son open
rtnership

roductio
e meeting
o they we

then read
eeting (vo

tter from
ona remi
spital for 
use.  Peo
sessmen
ve prope
rvice ther

e Govern
ey put tog
ard, who 
w they ar

hn and K
pport is, h

ace at the
aced out o
eatment U
d no-one 

otherham
ked abou
ard have
ay.  This 

en thoug
re we are
is means
fe and ge
ove peopl

rship Bo

ned the m
 Board m

ons + Apo
g started 
ere).

d out the 
oting mem

m Winterb
nded the
people w

ople were
t but som
r care pla
re was de

nment rec
gether a g

had aske
re doing w

ate did a 
how long 

e right tim
of district
Unit (ATU
is in for l

complete
ut at the P
 written b
informati

h we are 
e supporti
s we know
etting the 
le on into

Pa

oard – F

meeting a
meeting.

ologies
 with intro

 people w
mbers) – 

bourne V
e meeting
with learn
e suppose
me had be
ans and p
elivered in

cognised 
group of p
ed areas 
with rega

 lot of wo
 they hav

me.  In Ro
.  People

U) are in t
longer th

ed the qu
Partnersh
back to us
on was s

 doing ok
ing peop
w what th
right care

o indepen

age 2 

Friday 1

nd welco

oductions

who said 
see page

View Join
g that Win
ing disab
ed to be i
een in for
people we
n a safe w

this was 
people ca
to comp

ard to the 

ork on kno
ve been t
otherham
e placed i
there for 
an a yea

uestionna
hip Board
s and in R

sent out w

kay we ne
le in hosp

hey are ex
e, and th

ndent livin

17th Jan

med eve

s being m

they cou
e 1. 

nt Improv
nterbourn
bilities wh
in for sho
r over 2 y
ere not m
way.

not a go
alled the J
lete a que
Winterbo

owing wh
here, if th
we know
n our Ass
the short
r.

aire and s
.  The Jo
Rotherha
with the a

eed to ke
pital settin
xperienci
at there a

ng if poss

nuary 20

eryone to 

made (peo

ld not co

vement B
ne View w
here there
ort stay fo
years.  Th
making su

ood situat
Joint Imp
estionnai
ourne iss

here ever
hey are in

w everyon
sessmen
test time 

sent this i
oint Impro
am we are
agenda pa

eep worki
ngs and 
ng, that t
are plans
sible.

014

the

ople said

me to the

Board
was the 
e was lots
or an 
hey did no
ure that th

ion and 
provemen
ire about 
ues.

ryone we 
n the righ
ne we hav
t and 
possible

n – it was
ovement
e doing 
apers. 

ng to ma
in the AT
they are 
s in place 

e

s of 

ot
he

nt

ht
ve

s

ke
TU.

to

Page 10



Copro
about
use se
carers
profes
comin
make
for eve

oduction is
people wh

ervices,
s and 
ssionals
g together
things bett
eryone.

Da
we
wo

3 Wi
Pro
Th
out
(co
for
to t

4 Pe
Alis
info

!

Pe
wit
is p
the

The
the

!

Sh
wo
par
Su
exp

s
ho

r to 
ter

Partner

avid told t
eek asking
orking on 

nterbour
ogress –
is is the i
t with the

ompliant)
m with m
the Partn

ople’s Is
son gave
ormation 

Bus pass
to work e
People a
such as d

ople at th
h mobility
pensione
ey have to

ere are a
e driver, fo

Alison ha
(NCAG),
carers. T
agencies

ona said 
ork around
rt of this t
e Wilson 
periences

rship Bo

he meetin
g for muc
this at th

rne View
– Rotherh
nformatio
 agenda 
and have

more detai
nership Bo

ssues
e a presen

about:

ses – peo
early they
also said t
drivers se

he meetin
y passes 
rs who ca
o pay. 

also some
or examp

as joined 
 which is
The grou
s are doin

that a gr
d a joint h
they will b
to conta

s.

Pa

oard – F

ng that w
ch more d
e momen

w Joint Im
ham Ana
on talked 
papers.
e met the
il to comp
oard on a

ntation to

ople at Sp
y cannot 
they had
etting off 

ng talked 
can get 

an’t use t

e cards th
ple, that y

the Natio
s a group 
p talk abo
ng well or

roup of pe
health an
be lookin
ct Speak

age 3 

Friday 1

we have re
detailed in
nt.

mprovem
alysis

about at
It says th

e objectiv
plete.  We
a regular 

o the mee

peakup s
use their 
had bad
too early

about th
on buses
their bus 

hat you ca
you need 

onal Co-P
of people
out wheth
r not so w

eople in t
nd wellbei
g at copr

kup to talk

17th Jan

eceived a
nformatio

ment Boa

 (2) abov
hat Rothe
es.  We n
e will con
basis.

eting, whi

said some
bus pass
 experien

y.

is.  They 
s before 9
passes b

an get to 
more tim

Productio
e who us
her the go
well.   

he Counc
ing strate
roductio
k about th

nuary 20

another fo
on.  There

ard – Stoc

ve, which 
erham is 
now have
ntinue to r

ch includ

etimes if t
ses befor
nces on t

said that
9.00 am. 
before 9.0

use on b
me to sit d

on Adviso
se service
overnme

cil are do
egy (big p
on.  Shon
his and s

014

orm this 
e are staf

cktake o

was sen
doing OK
e a new 
report ba

ded

they trave
re 9.00 am
he bus –

t people 
 Howeve
00 am an

buses to t
down.

ory Group
es or their
nt and ot

oing some
plan).  As
a will ask
hare thei

ff

of

nt
K

ack

el
m.

er, it 
nd

tell

p
r
ther

e

k
r

Page 11



5 Ca
An
So
the
wo

Sh
com
Ho
hav
saf
peo
wo
reg

Be
peo
refe

It w
con
talk
too
alw

Ac
5a Sh

con
Sh
don

Jay
con
bee
yea
is t
Tre
cle
me
wo

Partner

arers’ Iss
n said tha
me carer

e annual r
orkers.

ona expla
mmitmen

owever, th
ve taken 
feguardin
ople were

ork on Oa
gistered h

cause of 
ople were
erred to a

was repor
nfidential
king abou
ok place i
ways be k

ction:
ona agre
ncerns, p
ona also 
ne alongs

yne said 
ncerns ab
en explai
ar becaus
taken ill s
eefields h
early show
eans that 
ould be a 

rship Bo

ues
at self tra
rs also do
reviews a

ained tha
nt last yea
his year th
up a lot o

ng issues 
e safe, at
k Close a

homes to 

this, we 
e OK.  If t
a social w

rted that s
ity – that 
ut people
n day ser

kept confi

eed to fee
particularl

agreed t
side the d

that befo
bout eme
ned that 
se emerg

suddenly.
have, whe
ws if it is t
their resp
good pro

Pa

oard – F

avel traini
on’t think 
and that t

at the Lea
ar to do 9
here hav
of social w
 in 2/3 ho
ttend Bes
and John
their own

have had
there are
worker.

some car
other pe

e’s issues
rvices or 
idential.

ed back to
y around

to check w
day servi

ore the me
ergency b
there are

gency bed
  Ann had

ere they s
their turn
pite may 

ocess for 

age 4 

Friday 1

ing is an 
that Day

they shou

arning Dis
93% of rev
e been 2
worker tim
omes and
st Interes
n Street to
n home.

d to look 
e any cha

rers are c
eople may
s.  Shona 

at home

o Day Se
d keeping
whether c
ce review

eeting, sh
bed cance
e a lot of 
ds are ne
d told Jay
send a le
 for an em
be cance
independ

17th Jan

ongoing 
 Services

uld be do

sability S
views, fa
 big piece
me.  The
d workers
t meeting
o help pe

at other w
nges in c

concerne
y hear Da
said that

, that info

ervice Ma
 informat
carer ass

ws.

he had be
ellations o
cancellat

eeded, fo
yne abou
tter with 
mergency
elled.  Jay
dent prov

nuary 20

issue for
s should 
ne by soc

Service ha
ace to fac
es of wor
re were b

s had to m
gs etc.  T
eople mov

ways to c
care then

ed about 
ay Servic
t whether
ormation

anagers a
tion confi
sessment

een talkin
of respite
tions at th
r exampl

ut the pro
respite d
y bed – w
yne thou

viders to f

014

carers.
be doing 
cial

ad a 
e.
rk which 
big 
make sur
here is a
ve from 

check tha
 this will 

e staff 
r the revie
should

about care
dential.
ts would 

ng about 
e.  It had 
his time o
e, if a car
cess that
ates whic

which
ght this 
follow.

e
lso

at
be

ew

ers’

be

of
rer
t
ch

Page 12



Jay
how
out
for

Ac
5b Sh

ma
Co

Bry
res
boo

Ac
5c Sh

6 Inc
 The

a m
mo
and
futu
the

 The
are
ben
is a
tim

 The
3 y

 The
to b
Pa

Ac
6a Joh

kno
me

Partner

yne also 
w much p
t respite f
Council

ction:
ona said 

ay be that
ouncil man

yan told t
spite at Q
oking. 

ction:
ona said 

clusion N
e Co-Cha

member o
ost of the 
d from th
ure work 

e structura

e letter a
e under a
nefits.  Th
a discoun

me.

e cost for
years is £

e Partner
become m
rtnership

ction:
hn is to w
ow about
ember.

rship Bo

told the m
planning
from 1st A
respite th

that John
t the inde
nagers a

he meeti
Quarryfield

that she 

North Me
airs at Inc
of Inclusio
Yorkshir
eir feedb
– such a
al and po

lso states
 lot of pre
he cost o
nt to mem

r one yea
27,984.

rship Boa
members
 Board w

write back
t the Part

Pa

oard – F

meeting t
notice the

April 2014
his is norm

n will pick
ependent
bout how

ng about
ds.  There

will ask J

embershi
clusion N
on North 
re & Hum
back Inclu
as helping
olicy chan

s that Inc
essure bu

of being a
mbers who

ar is £11,6

ard talked
s and the

would not 

k to the C
nership B

age 5 

Friday 1

hat paren
ey have t
4 to 31st M
mally don

k these is
sector m

w they ma

t a proble
e had be

John to c

ip
North have

from Apr
ber Partn

usion Nor
g Boards 
nges.

clusion No
ut they ca

a member
o sign up

660, 2 ye

d about w
re was a 
become

Co-Chairs
Board’s d

17th Jan

nt / carers
to give. S
March 20
ne for the

ssues up 
managers
anage the

em he had
en some 

check this

e written 
ril 2014.  
nership B
rth have c
and othe

orth are a
an offer c
r has not 

p for more

ears is £1

whether o
vote.  It w
a membe

 of Inclus
ecision n

nuary 20

s had an 
She had 

015.  Ann 
e next 4 / 

from the
could sp

ese issue

d had wit
confusio

s out for B

to John a
The lette

Board are
clear dire
ers to dea

aware tha
considera

increase
e than on

9,822 an

or not they
was agre
er.

sion North
not to bec

014

issue ab
had to pl
said that
5 months

 minutes
peak to 
es. 

th his 
on about h

Bryan. 

about bei
er says th
 member
ction for 

al with all 

at budget
able 
ed and the
ne year at

nd for 

y would li
eed that th

h to let th
come a 

bout
an
t
s.

.  It 

his

ing
at
rs

ts

ere
t a 

ike
he

hem

Page 13



7 Let
 Sh

(mo
are
Sh
she
to m

 Sh
use
cha
the
hav
wa

 The
dec
tha

Ac
7a Sh

how
Tal

Shona le

8 No
 Jo 

wh
me

Bryan lef
11.00 am

Partner

t’s Talk E
ona told 
oney). T
e looking 
ona had 
e will alw
make sur

ona said 
ers and c
allenges
ere are an
ve to do, 

ay.

e Partner
cided tha

at more p

ction:
ona is to 
w to take
lk events

eft the me

otes of th
went thro
at had ha

eeting we

ft the mee
m.

rship Bo

Event 20
the Board

There are 
at which 
told care
ays talk t
re we use

she wan
carers in d
for the Le
ny solutio
what we 

rship Boa
at smaller
eople get

talk to C
 this forw
 to do thi

eeting at t

he Last M
ough the 
appened.
re okay.

eting at th

Pa

oard – F

014
d that we
some sa
includes

ers 2 year
to carers 
e the mon

nts to get 
different w
earning D
ons.  We w
 have to 

ard talked
r meeting
t a chanc

Councillor
ward and 

s. 

this point

Meeting –
notes of 

.  Everyo
 There w

his point 

age 6 

Friday 1

e need to 
aving prop
s the Lear
rs ago tha
before m

ney we h

together
ways to t

Disability
will need
do, what 

d about th
s with ca

ce to have

Doyle an
suggest

t – 10.55 

– 25th Oc
the last m
ne said th

were no m

and Jan 

17th Jan

do some
posals th
rning Disa
at budget

making an
ave in the

with the 
alk about
Service a
 to look a
can be d

he best w
arers wou
e their sa

nd Counc
the possi

am.

tober 20
meeting t
hat the no

matters ar

arrived a

nuary 20

e work on
at Electe
ability Se
ts are tigh
ny saving
e best wa

service,
t the situa
and try to
at what w
done in a 

way to do 
uld work b
ay. 

cillor Rus
ibility of u

013
to remind
otes from

rising.

at the mee

014

n budgets
ed Membe
ervice.
ht but tha
s.  We ha
ay.

customer
ation, the

o work ou
we don’t 

different

this and 
better, so

sell abou
using Let’

d people 
m the 

eting – 

s
ers

at
ave

rs, 
e
ut if 

ut
’s

Page 14



9 An

9a Ca
AT

 Jo 
fro
The
abo
AT

Ac
9a Jo 

9b Sa
 Jay

tod
Ro
che
mo
SIR

 Jo 
goi

10 Da

Councillo

LDS/JFr/PB170
(29.01.14) 

Partner

ny Other 

are Qualit
TU

told the m
m the CQ
e report s
out qualit

TU again 

ction:
is to sen

fe In Rot
yne told t
day.  The 
otherham’
eque.  Th
onthly cha
R.

said that
ing to set

ate and T

Frid
@

or Russel

0114 

rship Bo

Busines

ty Comm

meeting t
QC’s visit 
says that 
ty and sa
in the futu

d out the

therham 
the meeti
Good Ne

’s SIR sc
here will b
arity mag

t she is ho
t up anoth

Time of N

day 7th M
10.00 am

ll closed t

Pa

oard – F

ss

mission (

that Sand
to check
 the ATU

afety.  CQ
ure.

e CQC rep

(SIR)
ng that th
eighbours
heme an
be an arti
azine.  Ja

oping to g
her meet

Next Mee

March 201
m

the meet

age 7 

Friday 1

(CQC) Re

dra has re
k the Asse
U is meeti
QC will be

port with 

here is a 
s News h
d someo
icle in the
ayne had

get a sup
ing of the

ting

14

ting and t

17th Jan

eport – L

eceived t
essment 
ng the go

e going ba

the minu

presenta
have awa
ne is com

e magazin
d put forw

pply of ke
e SIR Ste

hanked p

P
The meet
has been

meetin

Friday
@

nuary 20

Learning

he feedb
and Trea

overnmen
ack to ch

utes of the

ation at 12
arded £20
ming to ha
ne, which

ward a no

ey rings s
eering Gro

people fo

Please no
ting on 7th

n cancelled
ng will there

place on

y 11th Ap
@ 10.00 

014

Disabilit

ack repo
atment U
nt standa
eck the 

e meeting

2 noon 
00 to 
andover t
h is a 
mination

oon.  She
oup.

r coming

ote:
March 201

d.  The nex
efore take 
n:

pril 2014
am

ty

rt
nit.

ards

g.

the

for

e is 

.

14
xt

Page 15



RO199 

 
 

1 Meeting: Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care 

2 Date: 17 March 2014 

3 Title: Community and Home Care Activity and Quality 
Report Quarter 3 2013  

4 Directorate: Neighbourhoods and Adult Services  

 
 
 
5 Summary 
 

This report provides information on independent sector Community and Home 
Care Service activity and quality for the period 1 October 2013 to 31 December 
2013.   
 
Names of providers are withheld before to protect the commercial interests of 
independent sector providers. 
 
This report will be presented to the Contracting for Care Forum scheduled to take 
place on the 23rd of April 2014. 

 

6 Recommendations 
 

• This report and the information contained in it are received by Cabinet 
Member for Adult Social Care and forwarded onto the Adult Social Care 
Contracting for Care Forum. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO CABINET MEMBER  
 

Agenda Item 7Page 16



 

7 Details  
 

7.1     This report provides information on activity levels and quality monitoring 
outcomes for services delivered by the Community and Home Care 
Services (CHCS) Framework during Quarter 3 of the financial year 2013-
2014. 

 
7.2 The CHCS providers on the Framework include: 
 

1. Choice Healthcare (formerly 360 Health Care) 
2. Crossroads 
3. Housing 21 
4. Carewatch 
5. Ark 
6. Direct Health 
7. Domus 
8. Allied Health Care 
9. Comfort Call 
10. Mears  
11. TLC 
12. Sevacare 
13. Voyage 
14. Care UK 

 
Framework Activity Q 3 2013 (Appendix 1) 
 

7.4 At close of Q3, 1258 people were receiving Community and Home Care 
Services. 

 
7.5 Number on service throughout the year: 

 

Period Number of people on 
service 

End Quarter 3 2012-13 1257 

End Quarter 4 2012-13 1238 

End Quarter 1 2013-14 1234 

End Quarter 2 2013-14 1255 

End Quarter 3 2013-14 1258 

 
The figures above demonstrate relatively stable numbers of people on 
service over the previous 12 months with a variance of only 3 people 
compared the previous quarter. 

 
7.6  New Starters by Quarter: 

 
 

 
Qtr 3 

2012-13 

Qtr 4 

2012-13 

Qtr 1 

2013-14 

Qtr 2 

2013-14 

Qtr 3 

2013-14 

Independent 
Home Care 

201 213 264 226 201 

 

Page 17



 

7.7 Leavers by Quarter: 
 

 
Qtr 3 

2012-13 

Qtr 4 

2012-13 

Qtr 1 

2013-14 

Qtr 2 

2013-14 

Qtr 3 

2013-14 

Independent 
Home Care 

152 148 221 203 216 

 
 
8 Monitoring of Quality  
 

8.1 Concerns, Defaults and embargos 
 

 
Q1 

2013-14 
Q2 

2013-14 
Q3 

2013-14 
Total 
2013-14 

Closed Contracting 
Concerns (substantiated 
only) 

 
24 

 
22 

 
34 

 
80 

Safeguarding 
investigations 

2 
 
1 
 

0 3 

Default with embargo 0 2 
 
1 
 

2 

Voluntary suspension of 
placements 

 
0 
 

1 0 1 

Default without embargo 0 
 
0 
 

 
0 
 

 
0 
 

 
 

8.2  Overview of Concerns for Q3 2013/14: 
 

68 new concerns about domiciliary care providers were added to the 
database in the period.  70 were investigated and closed in the period.   
 
Of the 70 investigated and closed 38 (54%) were substantiated.  For the 
34 substantiated concerns: 
  
21 (56%) have been around missed calls 
2 (5%) about equipment  
2 (5%) about moving and handling 
4 (10%) around medication issues 
1 (3%) delay or failure to report an incident and  
1 (3%) around records   
4 (10%) quality of care 
2 (5%) staffing issue 
1 (3%) Management 
 
8 of the above had a safe guarding element. 
 

Page 18



 

8.3  Examples of key learning and service improvements from compliance 
 monitoring with the sector in Q3: 

  
As a result of a number of a medication error: 
 

• A home care provider disciplined the care worker concerned and 
agreed a replacement with the family.  Regular spot checks were 
undertaken and regular communication with the family was introduced.    

 
As a result of a missed call 
 

• A home care provider implemented a new system for managing rotas 
after a change. 

 

• A home care provider implemented a new system for communication 
of issues from their out of hours team. 

 

• A home care provider instigated a new check system for unallocated 
calls. 

 
As a result of a moving and handling issue: 
 

• A home care provider issued a guidance note and carer workers 
updated their moving and handling training 

 
As a result of 2 concerns around medication: 
  

• A home care provider had a worker redo medication training, 
completed spot checks and kept in close communication with families. 

 
8.4  Risk Matrix Update 
 

The Risk Matrix developed in collaboration between Commissioning and 
Safeguarding Teams and reported previously indicates how homes are 
performing against regulatory, Rotherham MBC quality standards, and 
contractual obligations.  The Information Systems team have progressed 
the work and the set up and ‘new look’ of the new database has been 
viewed.  It is still expected that the system will be fully functional early 
2014. 

 
The system will reduce the requirement of manual inputting, record timely 
information and enable efficient response to rectify failures and enforce 
contract terms and conditions to eliminate poor practice.   
 

8.5    Meetings with the Care Quality Commission  
 

Monthly meetings are chaired by the CQC, and include attendees from 
Health, Rotherham CCG, Safeguarding, Commissioning and Assessment 
and Care Management. 

 
In Q3, 2 meetings with CQC have been undertaken to share intelligence, 
identify risk and collaborate to resolve the issues mentioned above.   
 

Page 19



 

8.6     Home Matters Review 
 

For the current financial year all providers will be assessed against the 
Outcome Monitoring Framework between October 2013 and March 2014 
and will be reported in the next financial year.   
 
Ongoing continuous monitoring of the contracted home care sector inform 
the provider risk rating on the ‘risk matrix’ and prioritise the work 
programme for the Contract Compliance Officers, Commissioning and 
Contract Team.  
 

9 Finance 
 

9.1 NAS expenditure on independent sector home care is monitored by the 
Finance Team and this information is contained in monthly budget 
monitoring reports. 

 
9.2 The annual inflationary uplift was agreed in January and reported through 

existing reporting mechanisms via the Finance Team.  The sector have 
been formally advised. 

 
10 Risks and Uncertainties 
 

10.1 During Quarter 3 there were no issues reported regarding the capacity in 
the independent sector.   

  
10.2 The current Community and Home Care Services contractual agreement 

comes to an end 31st March 2015 with an option to extend to March 31st 
2016.  Preparatory commissioning activity has commenced with 
consultation with Assessment and Care Management and the 
independent sector in order to be ready to go to the market in April 2014.   

 
10.3 An analysis of a sample care schedules has been undertaken to establish 

the frequency of 15 minute calls and those that require 2 care workers and 
the duration of scheduled visits.  This information will be used to; establish 
a fair hourly rate, examine how the scheduling of visits affects the quality 
of service and provide context to the conditions of employment for care 
workers operating in the field. 

 
11 Policy and Performance Agenda Implications. 

 
11.1 The Rotherham Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2012 - 2015 sets out the key 

priorities that the local Health and Wellbeing Board will adopt over the next 
three years to improve the health and wellbeing of Rotherham people.  

 
The Strategy outlines six areas of priority and associated outcomes the 
Community and Home Care Services Framework supports Rotherham MBC 
to contribute against: 

 

• Priority 1 - Prevention and early intervention  

• Outcome: Rotherham people will get help early to stay healthy and 
increase their independence.  

Page 20



 

• Priority 2 - Expectations and aspirations  

• Outcome: All Rotherham people will have high aspirations for their health 
and wellbeing and expect good quality services in their community, 
tailored to their personal circumstances.  

• Priority 3 - Dependence to independence  

• Outcome: Rotherham people and families will increasingly identify their 
own needs and choose solutions that are best suited to their personal 
circumstances  

 
11.2 The Outcome Monitoring Framework – ‘Home Matters’ - monitors the 

quality of independent sector provision against the Community and Home 
Care Services Framework Agreement and Service Specification 2012 – 
2015. 

 
  

Contact:  Jacqueline Clark, Operational Commissioner, NAS 
Tel:   22358 
Email:  jacqueline.clark@rotherham.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



RO200 

 

1 Meeting: Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care 

2 Date: 17 March 2015 

3 Title: 
Residential and Nursing Care Quality and Activity 
Report for the period 1st October to 31st December 
2013  

4 Directorate: Neighbourhoods and Adult Services 

 
 
5 Summary 

 
This report provides information on Residential and Nursing Care activity and 
quality for the period 1 October 2013 to 31 December 2013.   
 
This report is appropriately anonymised and presented as an open report to 
Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care to protect the commercial interests of 
independent sector providers. 
 
It will be presented to the Adult Social Care Contracting for Care Forum arranged 
to receive Q3 reports. 

 

6 Recommendations 
 

• This report and the information contained in it are received by Cabinet 
Member for Adult Social Care and;  

 

• It is agreed that it can be forwarded onto the Adult Social Care 
Contracting for Care Forum scheduled to take place on the 23 of April 
2014. 

 
  

 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO CABINET MEMBER 

Agenda Item 8Page 22



 

 
7 Details 
 

7.1 This report provides information on occupancy levels and quality 
monitoring outcomes for the period 1st October 2013 to 31st December 
2013 for services delivered by independent and in house residential and 
nursing care homes. 

 
 7.2 Independent Sector Care (Older People) 
 

7.2.1 Monitoring of the occupancy and vacancy levels within each 
residential  care type is undertaken to ensure that there is 
sufficient capacity to meet  current levels of need and identify any 
issues of vulnerability in the care  home market.   

 
The figures below relate to residential care occupancy levels as at 
the 18 December 2013. 

 
 
Care Type Total 

Beds 
Occupied 

beds 
Q3  

2013-14 

Bed 
Vacancies  

Q3  
2013-14  

Q4 % 
Occupancy 
2012-13 

Q1% 
Occupancy 
2013-14 

Q2% 
Occupancy 
2013-14 

Q3% 
Occupancy 
2013-14 

Residential 510 459 51 85 83 86 90 

Nursing 162 140 22 86 84 82 87 

Dual Registered 
(Nursing/ 
Residential) 

308 272 26 67 89 86 91.5 

Residential 
Dementia Care  

344 293 60 80 85 80 83 

Nursing 
Dementia Care 

70 61 9 96 84  83 

Dual Registered 
Dementia Care  

(Nursing and 
Residential) 

176 161 15 
 

 

 

73 

 

 

 

87 

 

86* 91 

Dual 
Residential and 
Residential 
Dementia Care 

168 153 15 91* 91 

Totals 1738 1539 206 82 85 85 88 

 
* The categories of care homes have been defined for accuracy in 
the type of care provided.  

 
7.2.3 In Q3 there are currently 199 vacant beds available, representing a 

12% vacancy factor.  Vacancy levels were adequate to meet 
surges in demand over the winter period.   

 
There has been an increase of 3% overall occupancy levels have 
been stable between Q2 and Q3 2013-14.   

Page 23



 

 
Relatively high occupancy rates are evident in Dual Registered 
Care Homes providing dementia care.  

 
7.3 Local Authority Care 

 
   Intermediate Care/Fast Response 

 
  From Quarter 1 of 2012/13, the Local Authority and the Clinical 

Commissioning group have jointly commissioned 8 Fast Response 
residential beds at Lord Hardy Court.  This new service allows an 
opportunity for people to recuperate from a recent minor illness or minor 
injury which is available up to a maximum of 2 weeks.  This service 
reduces the number of admissions to hospital and residential care and 
improves outcomes for service users. 

 
In addition to this, there are 42 intermediate care residential rehabilitation 
beds in the North, South and Central area of the Borough which offers an 
opportunity for people to regain independence and increase their quality 
of life through personalised therapeutic/rehabilitation programmes. 

 

 
LA Residential Home 

Number of Fast 
Response 

Beds 

Number 
Intermediate 
Care Beds 

 
 

Total 

Lord Hardy Court 8 7 15 

Davies Court 0 15 15 

Netherfield Court 0 20 20 

Total 8 42 50 

 
Occupancy of Intermediate Care and Fast Response beds has increased 
from 80.73% from Quarters 2 in 2013/14 to 85.10% in Quarter 3 of 2013-
14.  This level of bed occupancy is a similar pattern to previous years 
during the winter months, as levels tend to be higher over this period. 

 
The average length of stay has slightly increased from 17 days (Quarter 
2) to 18 days (Quarter 3) for intermediate care beds and increased from 
12 days to 15 days in the Fast Response beds.   

 
Admissions have increased from 137 admissions in Quarter 2 to 148 
admissions in Quarter 3 due to a higher admission rate during the winter 
period.   

 
Care pathways have been developed for service users to access home 
care enabling or day rehabilitation services for additional therapeutic 
support to increase independence and enhance quality of life.  Positive 
outcomes by providing lengthier rehabilitation sessions is evidenced as 
the percentage of people discharged from intermediate care to residential 
care remains low at 2%.   
 

Page 24



 

Early indications from the ASCOF Part 2B indicator (originally National 
Indicator NI 125) suggests that the percentage of older people discharged 
from hospital to intermediate care who are living at home 91 days later 
has increased.  The first month of Quarter 4 suggests that this has 
increased from 89.53% in 2012/13 to 91.66% in Quarter 4 in 2013/14.  
Both these indicators demonstrate the effectiveness of an enabling 
approach on the quality of life and increased independence of people 
living in the community. 

 
   Residential Care 
 

There are a total of 90 LA beds available for Older People requiring 
Residential Care and Residential (Dementia Care).  There are 37 long-
term beds and 8 respite care beds at both Lord Hardy Court and Davies 
Court.   

 

Care Type 
Total 
Beds 

Occupied 
Beds 

Vacant  
Beds 

Q3 % 
Occupancy 

Residential  
(including 5 
respite care 
beds) 

30 21 
6 long-term  

plus 3 respite care  
= 9 

70% 

Residential EMI  
(including 12 
respite beds) 

60 48 
5 long-term  

plus 7 respite care  
= 12 

80% 

Totals 90 69 21 77% 

 
Overall bed occupancy rates in Local Authority Care Homes has fallen to 
77% in Quarter 3 of 2013/14 due to an embargo placed on admissions to 
the long-term unit and respite care beds due to recent safeguarding 
concerns at Lord Hardy Court and Davies Court from November 2013.  
Lifting of restrictions on both care homes have now been lifted in February 
2014.  Therefore, it is anticipated that bed occupancy rates in Quarter 4 
2013/14 will increase in the next few weeks. 
 

8 Independent Sector - Quality Monitoring (Older People)   
 
8.1       Compliance Actions 

 
 Q1 (13/14) Q2 (13/14) Q3 (13/14) Total 

Closed Contracting 
Concerns (substantiated 
only) 

 
24 

 
13 

 
36 

 
73 

Safeguarding 
investigations  

  8  
 

Default with embargo on 
placements  

2 
 

1 1  

Contract Default without 
embargo 

4 5 5  
 

 

Page 25



 

8.2       Overview of concerns for Q3 
 
130 new concerns were added to the database in Quarter 3.  64 were 
investigated and closed within the period.  36 (56%) of these were 
substantiated.   
 
8 of the concerns received had also involved an alert to the Safeguarding 
Team. 
 
Category of concern: 
 
13 (36%) related to inadequate care records   
5 (14%) delay in reporting issues 
2 (6%) about the environment or equipment 
1 (3%) about finance 
3 (7%) concerned medication 
6 (17%) quality of care 
6 (17%) staffing issues 

 
8.3      Examples of key learning and service improvements from compliance 

monitoring within the sector in Quarter 3: 
                              

Following a concern regarding inadequate care records:  
 

• A care home reviewed and rewrote care plans.  Auditing processes 
were also put in place. 

 
Following a concern about the quality of care provided 
 

• A care home introduced a communication plan for dealing with 
environmental emergencies, monitoring of a service user’s continence 
needs was introduced, a dietician referral was made and the care plan 
reviewed and updated. 

 
Following a concern regarding a delay in reporting an issue: 
 

• A care home implemented a daily check sheet for completion that 
ensures aid such as hearing aids are in working order. 

 
 8.4 Risk Matrix update 
 

The Risk Matrix developed in collaboration between Commissioning and 
Safeguarding Teams has and reported in Q1 (2013-14).   The Information 
Systems Team have progressed the work and the set up and ‘new look’ of 
the new database has been viewed.  It is still expected that the system will 
be fully functional early 2014. 
 
The system will reduce the requirement of manual inputting, record timely 
information and enable efficient response to rectify failures and enforce 
contract terms and conditions to eliminate poor practice.   

Page 26



 

  
8.5   Meetings with the Care Quality Commission  

 
Monthly meetings are chaired by the CQC, and include attendees from 
the Foundation Trusts, Rotherham CCG, Safeguarding, Commissioning, 
and Assessment and Care Management. 
 
In Q3, 2 meetings with CQC have been undertaken to share intelligence 
and collaborate to resolve the issues mentioned above. 

 
8.6  Home from Home Reviews 
 

Reviews for 2012/13 are completed and reports are available to view on 
the Council website. 
 
Quality premium payments have been paid in 2013/14 for residents 
placed under the Rotherham contract in excellent and good care homes 
(as at 01/04/13). 

 
 8.7 Residential and Nursing Care Home provider forum 
 

In February the newly formed Older Peoples Care Home Forum took 
place.   This was the inaugural meeting and focused on agreeing the 
Terms of Reference and reporting pathway. 
 
The nominated representative to attend the Contracting for Care Forum 
from the independent sector will be agreed on the 7th of March when the 
next forum meets.  In the interim Salim Boodhoo (Mauricare – Ashton 
Court Care Home) will represent.   

 
An AGM will take place involving both forum memberships and hosted by 
Commissioning and Contracts Team this will allow for a review of the 
changed arrangements.  

 
This operational forum is complimentary to the ‘Shaping the Future’ 
events where strategic representatives of the membership organisations 
attend. 

 
9  Finance 

 
NAS expenditure on Residential/Nursing Care is monitored by the Finance Team 
and this information is contained in monthly budget monitoring reports. 

 
10    Risks and Uncertainties 
 
 Residential Care Review (Older People) 
 

10.1 There are currently 3 care homes for sale on the open market as going 
concerns.  One of these care homes has been in receivership since 2010.  
The combined capacity of these care homes represents 132 units or 7.5% 

Page 27



 

of the total contracted capacity (77 Residential, 26 Nursing, 29 
Residential/Dementia units).  The combined occupancy status in December 
2013 was 93 residents.  Should there be a need to relocate these residents 
there is adequate capacity to do so in the current contracted market.   

 
10.2 Whilst there is no suggestion that there is immediate risk to retaining 

adequate care home capacity in Rotherham the occupancy levels in care 
homes providing dementia/nursing care has increased on previous 
quarters.  

 
 One care home recently registered by the Care Quality Commission 

‘Mulberry Manor’ has a capacity for 28 nursing/dementia beds and is 
currently undergoing pre contract approval.  Should it be possible to 
contract with this care home this will support any future pressures in the 
long term.  

 
10.3 A detailed report on the review (Older People’s Care Homes) is currently 

being compiled which will be shared with DLT/Cabinet Member contracted 
Care Home.  

 
 
11 Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 

 
11.1 The Rotherham Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2012 - 2015 sets out six 

areas of priority and associated outcomes. Residential care supports 
Rotherham MBC to contribute against the following priorities: 

 

• Priority 2 - Expectations and aspirations  

• Priority 5 - Long-term conditions  
    
 

11.2 The principles by which residential and nursing care in Rotherham is 
delivered are set out in the Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework 
(ASCOF). Rotherham MBC expects that all Service Providers operate 
within these principles to promotes people’s quality of life and their 
experience of care, and deliver care and support that is both personalised 
and preventative and achieves better outcomes for people.   

 
  The 4 Domains of the ASCOF and the associated outcomes 
 

• Domain 1: Enhancing quality of life for people with care and support 
needs 

• Domain 2:  Delaying and reducing the need for care and support 

• Domain 3: Ensuring that people have a positive experience of care and 
support 

• Domain 4: Safeguarding people whose circumstances make them 
vulnerable and protecting from avoidable harm 

 
11.3  Ensuring a range of diverse quality services is a duty of the LA under the 

Care and Support Bill and consistent with the national Adult Social Care 

Page 28



 

Outcomes Framework; and Developing Care Markets for Quality and 
Choice Programme.  

 
 

Contact Name: Jacqui Clark, Operational Commissioner 
Extension:   22358 
Email:   jacqueline.clark@rotherham.gov.uk 

 

Page 29



 

 
 
1  Meeting: Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care 

2  
 

Date: Monday 17th March 2014 

3  Title: Adult Services Revenue Budget Monitoring Report 
2013/14 

4  Directorate : Neighbourhoods and Adult Social Services 

 
5 Summary 
 

This Budget Monitoring Report provides a financial forecast for the Adult 
Services Department within the Neighbourhoods and Adult Services Directorate 
to the end of March 2014 based on actual income and expenditure for the 
period ending January 2014.   

 
The latest forecast for the financial year 2013/14 is an overall overspend of 
£538k, against an approved net revenue budget of £72.803m, a further 
reduction in the overspend of £545k since the last report. The report includes 
the recently approved funding for winter pressures together with funding 
towards achieving Public Health outcomes.  Compensatory forecast 
underspends within the remaining NAS Directorate is reducing the overall 
forecast overspend further to £124k.  The main budget pressure areas relate to 
the delayed implementation of a number of budget savings including continuing 
health care funding and the review of in-house residential care. 
Management actions continue to be developed by budget managers to bring 
the forecast overspend in line with the approved cash limited budget.  

 
6 Recommendations 
 

That the Cabinet Member receives and notes the latest financial projection 
against budget for 2013/14.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 9Page 30



 

 
 

7 Proposals and Details 
 
7.1 The Current Position  
 

The approved net revenue budget for Adult Services for 2013/14 is £72.803m. 
The approved budget included additional funding for demographic and some 
existing budget pressures (£0.949m) together with a number of savings 
(£7.186m) identified through the 2013/14 budget setting process.  

 
7.1.1 The table below summarises the latest forecast outturn against approved  

budgets:-  
 

Dec 
Variation 

 
 
Division of 
Service 

 
Net 
Budget 

 
Forecast 
Outturn 
 

 
 
Variation  
 

 
 
Variation 

£000  £000 £000 £000 % 

-66 Adults General 1,777 1,671 -106 -5.97 

+760 
 
Older People 29,455 30,107 +652 

 
+2.21 

 

+249 Learning 
Disabilities 

23,527 23,803 +276 +1.17 

-208 Mental Health 5,004 4,517 -487 -9.73 

+419 
 
Physical & Sensory 
Disabilities 

5,270 5,697 +427 
 

+8.10 

+15       Safeguarding 729 609 -120       -16.46 

-86 
 
Supporting People 7,041 6,937 -104 

 
-1.48 

      

+1,083 Total Adult 
Services 

72,803 73,341 
 

+538 +0.74 

 
 

7.1.2 The latest year end forecast shows there are a number of underlying budget 
pressures mainly in respect of an increase in demand for Direct Payments 
across most client groups plus pressures on external transport provision 
within Learning Disability services, increased demand in year for independent 
sector residential and home care and delayed implementation on budget 
savings within in house residential care and additional continuing health care 
contributions. These pressures are being reduced by a number of forecast 
non recurrent under spends, additional one off grant funding and 
management actions to enable spend to be contained within the approved 
budget by the end of the financial year. 
                       
The main variations against approved budget for each service area can be 
summarised as follows: 

 
 

Page 31



 

 
Adults General (-£106k) 

 
This area includes the cross cutting budgets (Workforce planning and training,   
and corporate charges) are forecasting an overall under spend based on 
estimated charges including savings on training budgets and additional finding 
for HIV. 

.   
 

Older People (+£652k) 
 

• Overspend on In-House Residential Care due to delays on implementation of 
budget savings target due to extended consultation (+£156k) and recurrent 
budget pressure on residential care income (+£45k).  

• Recurrent budget pressure in Direct Payments over budget (+£645k). 
However, client numbers have reduced (-23) since April together with a 
reduction in the average cost of packages.  

• Under spend on In House Transport (-£34k) due to forecast additional 
income. 

• Forecast under spend on Enabling Care and sitting service (-£240k) based on 
current level of service. However, there is an over spend on Independent 
sector home care (+£728k), which has experienced an increase in demand 
since April (+27 clients).  

• An over spend on independent residential and nursing care (+£1.155m) due 
to delays in achieving the savings target for additional Continuing healthcare 
income (an additional 78 clients are receiving a service than budgeted). 
Additional income from property charges is reducing the overall overspend.  

• Forecast under spend in respect of Community Mental Health budgets due to 
planned delay’s  in developing dementia services in order to reduce the 
overall Directorate overspend (-£310k). 

• Under spend on carers services due to vacancies and reduced take up in 
carers breaks (-£183k). 

• Planned delay’s on recruitment to vacant posts within Assessment & Care 
Management and Community Support plus additional income from Health (-
£897k). 

• Forecast saving on in-house day care (-£84k) due to vacant posts and the 
moratorium on non-pay budgets. 

• Overall under spend on Rothercare (-£261k) due to delays  in service review 
including options for replacement of alarms together with additional income 
plus winter pressures funding for Telecare equipment (-£31k). 

• Other minor under spends in other non pay budgets due to the moratorium on 
non-essential spend (-£37k). 

 
 
Learning Disabilities (+£276k) 
 

• Independent sector residential care budgets now forecasting a slight 
underspend due to a review of high cost placements (-£29k). Work is ongoing 

Page 32



 

regarding CHC applications and an internal review of all high cost 
placements.  

• Forecast overspend on Day Care (+£208k) due to a delay on the 
implementation of day care review including increase in fees and charges, 
plus recurrent budget pressure on the provision of external transport. 

• Pressures on residential and nursing care contracts with SYHA is resulting in 
a forecast overspend of £70k. However, service reconfiguration to supporting 
living in February and March will reduce this pressure in 2014/15. 

• Overspend in independent sector home care (+£94k) due to increase in 
demand over and above the budget savings target. 

• High cost placements in independent day care is resulting in a forecast 
overspend of +£70k. Pressure reduced due to additional CHC funding and 
one client moving out of the area. 

• High cost community support placements is resulting in a forecast overspend 
of £18k. 

• A delay in developing Supported Living schemes plus additional funding from 
health is resulting in a forecast under spend (-£41k).  

• Efficiency savings on SLA’s for advice and information and client support 
services (-£63k).   

• Lower than expected increase in demand for direct payments (-£27k). 

• Additional staffing costs and essential repairs with In house Residential care 
offset by planned delays in recruiting to vacant posts within Assessment & 
Care Management (+£12k). 

 
 
Mental Health (-£487k) 
 

• A projected under  spend on residential care budget (-£47k). Additional 
placements in respect of substance misuse is being funded by a contribution 
from public health. 

• An under spend in community support budget (-£367k) due to delays in clients 
moving from residential care. 

• Under spend on Direct Payments (-£56k), additional income recovery is 
offsetting  the initial  budget pressure. 

• Pressures on employee budgets due to lower than expected staff turnover, 
additional overtime and agency cover is being offset by additional funding for 
substance and alcohol social work posts (-£18k). 

 
Physical & Sensory Disabilities (+£427k) 
 

• Continued Pressure on Independent Sector domiciliary care (+£212k) due to a 
continued increase in demand for service. 

• Further increase in demand for Direct Payments (+ 10 clients), forecast 
overspend (+£627k). 

• Under spend on community support (-£52k) as clients move to a direct 
payment. 

• Forecast under spend on Residential and Nursing care due to planned delay’s  
in developing alternatives to respite provision (-£228k).  

• Reduction in contract with independent sector day care provider (-£73k). 

Page 33



 

• Under spend on equipment and minor adaptations budgets (-£35k). 

• Forecast efficiency savings on contracts with Voluntary Sector providers and 
higher than forecast staff turnover (-£24k). 

 
 
Safeguarding (-£120k) 
 

• Under spend due to higher than expected staff turnover and additional funding 
for Domestic Violence support. 

 
 
 Supporting People (-£104k) 
 

• Efficiency savings on subsidy contracts identified against original budget.   
 
 
7.1.3 Agency and Consultancy 
 

Actual spend on agency costs to end January  2014 was £281,903 (no off 
contract), this is a decrease compared with actual expenditure of £307,394 
(no off contract) for the same period last financial year. The main areas of 
spend are within Assessment & Care Management Teams, residential care 
and safeguarding to cover front line vacancies and sickness. 
 
There has been no expenditure on consultancy to-date. 

 
7.1.4 Non contractual Overtime 
 

Actual expenditure in respect of non contractual overtime to the end of 
January 2014 was £327,227 compared with £329,783 for the same period last 
year. 
 
The actual costs of both Agency and non contractual overtime are included 
within the financial forecasts. 
 

7.2 Current Action  
 

To mitigate any further financial pressures within the service, budget meetings 
and budget clinics are held with Service Directors and managers on a regular  
basis to monitor financial performance and further examine significant 
variations against the  approved budget to  ensure expenditure remains  
within  the cash limited budget by the end of the financial year.  

 
8.  Finance 
 

Finance details including main reasons for variance from budget are included 
in section 7 above.  

 
 
 

Page 34



 

9.  Risks and Uncertainties 
  

Careful scrutiny of expenditure and income and close budget monitoring 
remains essential to ensure equity of service provision for adults across the 
Borough within existing budgets particularly where the demand and spend is 
difficult to predict in such a volatile social care market. 
One potential risk is the future number and cost of transitional placements 
from children’s services into Learning Disability services.  
In addition, any future reductions in continuing health care funding would  
have a significant impact on residential and domiciliary care budgets across 
Adult Social Care. 
Regional Benchmarking within the Yorkshire and Humberside region for the 
final quarter of 2012/13 shows that Rotherham remains  below average on 
spend per head in respect of continuing health care (10th out of 15 
Authorities). 

 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 

 
The delivery of Adult Services within its approved cash limit is vital to 
achieving the objectives of the Council and the CSCI Outcomes Framework 
for Performance Assessment of Adult Social Care. Financial performance is 
also a key element within the assessment of the Council’s overall 
performance.   

     
11.  Background Papers and Consultation 
 

• Report to Cabinet on 20 February 2013 –Proposed Revenue Budget and 
Council Tax for 2013/14.   

• The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2011-2014. 
 
This report has been discussed with the Strategic Director of Neighbourhoods 
and Adult Services, the Director of Health and Well Being and the Director of 
Financial Services. 
 
 

Contact Name: Mark Scarrott – Finance Manager  (Neighbourhoods and Adult 
Services), Financial Services x 22007, email Mark.Scarrott@rotherham.gov.uk. 

Page 35


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 Rotherham Learning Disability Partnership Board
	7 Community and Home Care Activity and Quality Quarter 3 2013
	8 Residential and Nursing Care Quality and Activity
	9 Adult Services Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14

